
MINUTES 
CITY OF NORCO 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2820 CLARK AVENUE 

 REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 26, 2011 

 

   

1. CALL TO ORDER:   7:00 PM 
 
2. ROLL CALL: Chair Hedges, Vice-Chair Wright, Commission Members Jaffarian 

and Henderson 
 
3. STAFF PRESENT: Planning Director King, Senior Planner Robles and Deputy 

City Clerk Germain 
 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Chair Hedges  
 
5. APPEAL NOTICE: Read by PD King 
 
6. HEARING FROM THE AUDIENCE ON ITEMS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA: 

NONE 
 
7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: January 12, 2011 Recommended Action: Approve the 

Minutes (Deputy City Clerk) 
M/S Wright/Jaffarian to approve minutes of January 12, 2011 with minor corrections. 
 
AYES:  Unanimous        Motion Carried 
 
8. CONTINUED ITEMS: 
 
PD King provided a revised draft Hospitality Development Zone for Planning Commission 
review. He asked that the Commission give direction and to set a date for a public hearing. 
 
Discussion ensued. It was recommended that a clause allowing for a waiver of the specific 
plan requirement be removed, all agreed.  
 
Staff will set the public hearing in the near future. 
  
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Resolution 2011-___: Conditional Use Permit 2011-01 (Provencio): A 
Request for Approval to allow a 3,240 Square-Foot Accessory Barn/Mare 
Motel Building at 1611 Corona Avenue located within the A-1-40 Zone. 
Recommendation: Approval (Senior Planner Robles) 

 
SP Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Division. The site plan has been 
found to comply with all requirements. She added that no concerns were brought up from 
the Architectural Review Board. 
 
Chair Hedges OPENED the public hearing, indicated that proper notification had been 



Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 2 
January 26, 2011 
 
 
made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak. With no one wishing 
to speak, she closed the public hearing and brought discussions back to the 
Commission. 
 
Discussions ensued regarding a more specific use description, and what a modification 
would entail for an applicant including the possibility of additional costs.  
 
M/S Wright/Jaffarian adopt Resolution 2011-07, approving Conditional Use Permit 2011-
01, to allow a 3,240 square-foot barn/mare motel at 1611 Corona Avenue, amending the 
use description to “agricultural and animal keeping” barn. 
 
AYES: Unanimous      Motion Carried 
 

B. Resolution 2011-___: Conditional Use Permit 2010-09 (Klinkenborg): A 
Request for Approval to allow a 2,000 Square-Foot Accessory Storage 
Building at 2285 Santa Anita Road located within the A-1-20 Zone. 
Recommendation: Approval. Senior Planner Robles 

 
SP Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Division. She distributed 
examples of what the building could potentially look like. The applicant is proposing to 
demolish/remove a pool in order to extend the open animal area if required. SP Robles 
asked for direction and provide revisions as needed. 
 
In response to PC Jaffarian, SP Robles stated that she reviewed the site directly and 
verified the calculations based on the plan provided by applicant. 
 
SP Robles noted that the samples provided to the PC are just a guide as to what it may or 
may not look like.  
 
Applicant Robert Klinkenborg: Mr. Klinkenborg gave an overview of the probable look of 
the building once it is painted, and that he plans for it to match the color of the house. He 
noted that it will look similar to the picture provided on Exhibit C, but will add a roll-up door 
and an entrance door. Mr. Klinkenborg also confirmed that the accessory building is for 
storage purposes only. 
 
Chair Hedges OPENED the public hearing, indicated that proper notification had been 
made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak.  
 
 
Ron Gagnon: Mr. Gagnon is a neighbor and stated his concern with the view he will have 
due to the location of the building as the neighborhood is built on a tiered level. He added 
that he also has concerns with the height.  
 
Ally Gagnon: Mrs. Gagnon noted that she is against approval of this CUP and also has 
concerns with what will be stored in the building.  
 



Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 3 
January 26, 2011 
 
 
Lance Gregory: Mr. Gregory asked questions regarding on how are code violations of this, 
or any other, CUP going to be policed and what type of actions would be taken.  
 
Chair Hedges CLOSED the public hearing, bringing the discussion back to the 
Commission.  
 
PC Henderson stated that he feels this building is too large for this property in comparison 
to the house. 
 
PC Jaffarian agreed that the building is too large but noted that it is within the regulations of 
what could be allowed through a CUP process. He added that he feels this building would 
be difficult to convert to animal keeping as it is not located near an animal open area. He 
asked for staff to again review the placement of the building. 
 
Vice Chair Wright concurred and agreed that the size is too big.  
 
Chair Hedges noted that she had the same concerns and was glad to hear from the 
neighbors who came to let their concerns be known.  
 
M/S Henderson/Wright to deny without prejudice, Conditional Use Permit 2010-09 
 
PC asked staff to review with the applicant the scale and height of the structure; offering the 
applicant the right to bring this request back to Planning Commission should he choose to.    
 
AYES: Unanimous      Motion Carried 

 
10. BUSINESS ITEM:  

A. Resolution 2011-___; Site Plan 2010-05 (MacDougall): A Request for 
Approval to allow an 812 Square-Foot Accessory Workshop Building at 2623 
Steeplechase Way located within the A-1-20 Zone. Recommendation: 
Approval (Senior Planner Robles) 

 
SP Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Division. Staff recommends 
approval. 
PC Jaffarian asked staff to add a condition noting that there is “no residence usage 
allowed”. 
 
Some discussion ensued.  
 
M/S Henderson/Wright to adopt Resolution 2011-06, approving Site Plan 2010-05, adding 
the condition that the building cannot be used as second living unit 
 
AYES:  Unanimous       Motion Carried 
  

B.  Resolution 2011-___; Site Plan 2008-02, Mod. No. 1 (SSOE): Approval of a 
Modification to the Approved Site Plan to allow for the Development of a 76, 288 



Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 4 
January 26, 2011 
 
 

Square-Foot, Multi-Building commercial Retail Center, Including a Remodel of an 
Existing Building at the Southeast Corner of Second Street and River Road. 
Recommendation: Approval (Planning Director King)  
 

PD King explained that the applicant requested that this report be postponed for 30 days. 
 
M/S Jaffarian/Henderson to continue Site Plan 2008-02, Modification 1 to the second 
meeting in February 
 
AYES:  Unanimous       Motion Carried 
 
11. CITY COUNCIL:       Received and Filed 

A. Recap of Actions Taken at the January 19, 2011 City Council/Community 
Redevelopment Agency Meeting. 

 
B. City Council Minutes dated December 13, 2010 (Special Meeting); December 

15, 2010; January 10, 2011 (Special Meeting) 
 
12. PLANNING COMMISSION: Oral Reports from Various Committees: NONE 
 
13. STAFF: Current Work Program dated January 20, 2011: Received and Filed 
 
14. OTHER MATTERS:  

 
 PD King presented an oral report on a previously approved Day Care at 4193 Bluff 

Street (Pasley).  
 
PD King explained that the applicants came across some difficulties during construction. He 
provided a hand-out detailing the revised elevations proposed due to the required changes. 
He noted the problems found were based on state requirements for higher walls, adding 
that the roof had to be removed in order to accommodate this change. PD King stated that 
staff supports the changes in the architecture. 
 
Applicants, Larry and Lynette Pasley were available for questions. In response to the 
Commission, Mr. Pasley noted that due to the residence remaining empty for a while, there 
was lots of rot, termites, and other problems. He added that with all the damage it was best 
to replace the walls and that it previously did not have enough clearance for the air 
condition unit that is required by the state. 
 
PC Jaffarian stated that he likes the look of the building with the added details, adding that it 
looks much better than it used to.  
 
Vice Chair Wright likes the look as well but noted some concerns that it no longer looks like 
a house as the original request was a house to be converted to a day-care, which could 
also be converted back again.  
 



Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 5 
January 26, 2011 
 
 
In response to the PC, PD King stated that this is a conditionally permitted use in a 
residential zone and added that a zone change is not needed.   
 
M/S Henderson/Jaffarian to approve the new architecture showing the revised elevation 
 
Ayes: Hedges/Jaffarian/Henderson 
Nays: Wright – felt that the building looks more commercial than residential. 
 

 Chair Hedges asked PD King if he has had a chance to look into construction at 
3951 Temescal occuring on Saturdays.  

 
 PC Henderson inquired about Council input for the Planning Commission to 

discuss/review code enforcement procedures. PD King stated that he will draft a 
memo for Planning Commission review prior to presentation to the City Council. 

 
 PC Henderson noted that the property with a large accessory building located at 

Gallup and Half Circle has an open building permit, which is over 2 years old; he 
asked staff to check into this. PD King will follow up with the Building Department 
Inspector.   

 
 PC Henderson asked about the brick building on Temescal Street located across 

from the chiropractor’s office. PD King noted that the site plan had been denied by 
the Planning Commission originally, it was then appealed to the City Council which 
concurred with the PC’s findings. The site plan then came back to the Planning 
Commission with revisions at which time it was approved. In response to Chair 
Hedges, PD King will provide copies of the staff report and minutes showing the final 
approval.  

 
15. ADJOURNMENT: Chair Hedges adjourned the meeting at 8:26 PM 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
________________________ 
Steve King 
Planning Secretary 
 
/di-77653 
 


